

GeoExplorer Office V8.3

Manual



Meet the Difference

Rijkstraatweg 22F 2171 AL Sassenheim The Netherlands **T** +31 71 301 9251

E info@eijkelkamp-geopoint.com

I eijkelkamp-geopoint.com

0605635

Contents

About this user manual	3
1. Introduction	3
2. Software installation	4
3. Data and archiving	6
4. Importing the soundings	
5. Editing the sounding values	
6. Printing a sounding graph	
7. Other program options	16
9. Interrupted sounding data (while drilling)	17
Sample end-product	

Nothing in this publication may be reproduced and/or made public by means of print, photocopy, microfilm or any other means without previous written permission from Eijkelkamp GeoPoint SoilSolutions. Technical data can be amended without prior notification.

Eijkelkamp GeoPoint SoilSolutions is not responsible for (personal) damage due to (improper) use of the product. Eijkelkamp GeoPoint SoilSolutions is interested in your reactions and remarks about its products and operating instructions.

About this user manual



When the symbol shown on the left is placed before a section of text, this means that an important instruction follows.



When the symbol shown on the left is placed before a section of text, this means that an important warning follows pointing out a risk of injury to the user or damage to the device. Note: The user is at all times responsible for sufficient personal protection.

Text Text in italics means that the actual text is shown on the display screen or the device.

1. Introduction

GeoExplorer Office is a program that can be used to read in, edit and store files that contain the measured values of soundings. In this document the GeoExplorer Office program is referred to as GEO.

Soundings can be supplied in various formats. Three formats can be imported into GEO:

- GEF files, created in accordance with the GEF 1.1.3 standard
- GeoPoint files, created in accordance with Eijkelkamp GeoPoint SoilSolutions format
- APB files, in accordance with AP van den Berg's Gorilla! format

Once the files have been imported and edited, GEO stores the soundings in its own format, which is derived from the GEF standard, but which is more elaborate. The files are saved in ASCII format because this makes it possible to have the sounding files read by other software, if required, many years later.

GEO can export the sounding data in the following formats:

- GEF files, created in accordance with the GEF 1.1.3 standard
- GEF files, created in accordance with a simplified protocol with fewer measured values
- GeoPoint files, created in accordance with Eijkelkamp GeoPoint SoilSolutions B.V.'s format

The measured sounding values can be elaborately manipulated graphically in GEO. This may be desirable, because the rough data from a sounding unit can create an untidy graph with lots of peaks due to the preciseness of the measurement. In addition, the transition between probing rods is sometimes reflected in the graphs as spikes.

The rough values read in are the actually measured values. In making adjustments to these values the user's own responsibility plays a major role: manipulated values are not measured values and therefore do not necessarily represent reality.

In terms of printing the sounding graphs, GEO provides a wide range of options enabling the user to adjust the print's layout as desired.

We wish you lots of work enjoyment and productivity with the use of GEO.

2. Software installation

The software is supplied in ZIP format. The ZIP file contains the required installation files in compressed format. The easiest is to create a temporary folder and to unzip the ZIP file into this folder. The ZIP file can be unzipped using programs such as WINZIP or Total Commander, for example. Once the ZIP file has been unzipped, click on the '*install.exe*' file to start up the installation. The following window now appears:



Figure 1: Check off 'I agree' and then click on Continue.

Note: For Windows 7 and higher it is not possible to install the program under C:\program files\. This would limit GeoExplorer Office's rights as a result of which it will not work completely. To prevent this a separate folder must be created (locally or on the network).

😼 GeoExplorer Office Installation 🦳		×
Create a shortcut on your desktop		
Folder used to install the software:		
C:\Program Files (x86)\GeoExplorer_Office\	Search	folder
Folder used to save sounding data:		
C:\Program Files (x86)\GeoExplorer_Office\data\	Search	folder
GeoExplorer Office is a semi-multi user program. In a network environment program and the data can be accessed by more than one work station. Ar result of this enrors may occur when a file is processed simultaneously by n than one user which may result in loss of data. A save approach is installin the FULL version on 1 work station and READ ONLY versions on the oth work stations.	sa hore Ig	^
		\sim
Install a FULL version on this PC / this work station		
If you wish to share the CPT data with multiple users by means of a network, you should choose the folder used to save the souding data on the network.		
ZZ Back I've read and set all Install Demo	Install	

Figure 2: Click on 'Search folder' and select a new folder in which to store the software. Next check off 'I've read and set all' and then click on 'Install'.

The software can be installed as a full version (with read and write rights) or as a limited version (with read rights only).

If the software is installed on the network, it is recommended that one workstation is allocated for importing and editing the soundings and that as many workstations as necessary are configured with read rights only. This way you avoid any conflicts in the simultaneous editing of the same file.

If you checked off the '*I*'ve read and set all' checkbox, you have the option of installing a registered and a demo version of the software. Naturally the demo version only has read rights.

If an earlier version of the software has already been installed and you select the same folder for the installation of this new version, an existing setup file will be detected. All of your current preferences and settings are stored in this file. If you wish to save these settings, you must select 'No' when you are asked whether the existing file should be overwritten. If you select 'Yes', a new setup file will be created with the software's default values.

If your current setup file inadvertently contains erroneous settings, you can repeat the installation process and have the existing setup file overwritten during the installation.

3. Data and archiving

Before you start using the GEO software package, it is important to first create a well-organised folder structure. You can do this entirely in accordance with your own insights, however, this section contains a few examples.

Soundings can be supplied in various formats. Three formats can be imported into GEO:

- GEF files, created in accordance with the GEF 1.1.3 standard
- GeoPoint files, created in accordance with Eijkelkamp GeoPoint SoilSolutions format
- APB files, in accordance with AP van den Berg's Gorilla! format

The sounding data you receive (when you use a sonar cone) from the sounding unit consists of 4 files per sounding; namely a '0-file', '1-file', 'L-file' and a CSV file. Of these, the '0' and the '1' files are loaded into GEO. It is recommended that you create a folder on your computer or network and to subdivide it into year/ month/project number. The 'rough' files from the sounding unit can then be copied to this folder. The files can then be loaded into GEO from this folder.

The results of the soundings, after editing in GEO, must also be stored in a well-organised fashion to prevent any data loss. GEO operates on the basis of a tight scheme for storing the soundings:



Figure 3: Archive structure

The archive folders can be located in various storage locations. We recommend that you use a single centralised data folder (for example, a sub-folder below the folder that contains the program (C:\ GeoExplorer_Office\Sonderingen)). Each archive can be further sub-divided, for example on the basis of project numbers. The next chapter will go into further detail as to how you can create these folders. The edited soundings are saved as a DAT file. Each archive contains a project file. The administrative data for the projects is maintained in this file, such as the number of soundings and the highest ground level within a project. If the project file contains erroneous data or becomes otherwise corrupted, you can use the 'Commands > Rebuild index file' option to rebuild the archive's index file. When you start up the GEO program for the first time, the following window is displayed:



Figure 4: Pop-up window

Before you can continue, you must first create an archive folder on your computer or the network and select it in the pop-up window below (if an archive folder already exists, you can click 'Search' and after selecting the folder on 'Add'). All edited files are stored in the selected archive location. You can also enter a name here without making use of the 'Search' function. If the folder does not yet exist, you are asked whether it should be created.

Archiefebeer Cover Close		
To delete an achive, select it and press Delete Heb	Archiefbeheer	×
To delete an achive, select it and press Delete Heb	New archive folder	
To delete an achive, select it and press Delete Heb		
		Search Add
Close	To delete an achive, select it and press Delete	Help
Liose		
Close		
Close		
Dose		
Close		
		Close

Figure 5: First archive folder



4. Importing the soundings

If you click on 'Files' in GEO followed by 'Import soundings', the following menu will appear:

Importeer GeoPoint / GEF files			×					
GeoExplorer Office can import file from Geopoint, AF			Nieuw archief					
Importeren in archive: C.\Users\frank\Desktop\san			•					
Select Files Erase list Import	Project nr: FR-17064							
porteren in archive: C\Users\frank\Desktop\samengevoegd\(used archive)								
Attention!: soundings can only be imported PER pro								
For controle puposes, the lastly imported files will be	mentioned is the log file (importlog.dat)							

Figure 6: Importing the soundings

In the pull-down menu you can select the archive location where the sounding files are stored, or you can create a new archive.

If you click on 'Select files', you can select the desired sounding(s) you wish to load into GEO. The project number will be automatically transferred from the sounding (this can be adjusted manually). Next you must select or create the folder. A new folder is added to the archive in the form of a sub-folder.

Because the soundings are stored by project, the project number must be the same. As a result of this it is only possible to import soundings by project. In case you are importing the soundings of multiple projects, you must repeat these actions several times.

After you have imported a number of soundings from a project, a file will be created in the folder where the program itself is also located with the name '*Importlog.dat*'. Here you can see which file types were imported, in which archive the edited data is stored and the location where the sounding data is stored.

Next click on '*Import*'. If you use a sonar cone that the program does not yet know, 3 pop-up windows will appear in which you must enter the surface area of the tip and the friction mantle. Finally, the program asks if it is a subtraction cone. This information is available on the form supplied with the cone. Once you have completed these steps, the program remembers these cone values (which can still be changed manually at a later stage).

The following window now appears. The project folder appears on the left-hand side of this window, and under the header 'Sounding files' you will see the sounding(s) from the selected folder. Under the 'Archive' tab you can switch archives.

J GeoExplorer Office (Geopoint-edition) / VGM Archive=samengevoegd	- • ×
Files Print Archive Commands Translation Setup Statistics About	
Project folders: Tot jengte (n) 2:52 Sounding file:	Administrative text data

Figure 7: Main Menu

On the right-hand side you will see the 'Administrative test data' panel in which you can enter information about the sounding. When you place the cursor over a label, additional information appears. Under the 'General' tab you can enter information, such as reference, height, standard and class, groundwater, etc. You can load surveyed coordinates by clicking on 'Files' > 'Import coordinates'. This file must be a CSV file (saved as 'CSV list-separator character delimited') with the following structure (comma delimited):

Sounding no.	X coordinate	Y coordinate	Height
--------------	--------------	--------------	--------

Figure 8: CSV file structure

It is also possible to add a text box to the graph, at any arbitrary position. In addition, you can select the parameters to be displayed in the graph here when you export or print the sounding.

You can also enter various other items under the 'Specific' tab. The default values are shown below:

General Specific Cone	Measured Values Graph Restore Copy Help
Company:	
Vertical measuring method: Horizontal measuring metho	
Plotheigth (m):	depth control: 🔲 Backflow compensator: 🗹 Weight equipment (kN):
Zero point shift before: Zero poin shift afterwards: Correctionmethod:	Qc Fs Inc P Ftot 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 0 0,00 0,00 0,00 0 0 Lineair ▼

Figure 9: Specific tab

The cone details are shown under the 'Cone' tab, together with the values you entered when you first used the cone.

General Specific	Cone	Measured Values Gr	aph Restore	Copy Help
Cone number: Cone standard: Cone type:	S10-CFIP.1662 Subtraction	•	Surface area tip: Surface friction mantle: Distance tip-fiction mantle	1000 mm2 15000 mm2 . .
Max. value: Measuring range: Calibration zero po Calibration factor: Calibration date:		P: Ftot: 6,89 2642,19 26642,19 26642,19 26642,19 26642,19 26642,19 26642,19 26642,19 26642,19642,19642,1962,19 2662,19 2662,19 2662,19 2662,19 2662,19 2662,19		

Figure 10: Cone tab

Tip: if you entered the administrative details for the first sounding, you can very easily copy these values to all soundings of the project. If under project details you click on one of the label descriptors for a field with the left mouse button, the label will be underlined. Then by clicking with the right mouse button or by clicking on the '*Copy*' button, a pop-up menu is displayed with which you can copy that label to other soundings of that project.

Title:	Title
Street:	Street
Place:	Place
Province	
Country:	Kopiëer gegevens
<u>Client:</u>	Selecteer alle headerlabels
Project r	De-Select alle headerlabels

Figure 11: Select and copy details

5. Editing the sounding values

After the sounding has been imported, the measured values can be edited. This can be done manually and graphically.

By clicking on the '*Measured Values*' button, the measured values can be directly adjusted manually. In the measured values form you can select whether you want to display the values relative to ground level or relative to the reference level. After entering the changes, the modifications can be saved by clicking on '*Save*'. If you entered changes that you do not want to save, you can close the form and select '*No*' when you are asked whether you want to save the changes or click on '*Restore*'.

A more advanced option is to graphically edit the measured values. To open the graphical form for the current sounding, click on the '*Graph*' button. The graphical form by default opens with a graph that displays all measured parameters (see Figure 12 on page 12). If you do not want a certain parameter to be displayed, you can turn it off by clicking on the checkbox at the top right.

In the graphical form you can perform edits for each measured parameter that are applied across the entire area or across the selected depth ('*Depth selection*'). While keeping the left mouse button depressed, you can also select an area in the graph that you wish to edit. If after this, when you click once on the graph with the left mouse button, the entire graph is once again selected.

For each measured parameter you can:

- Use the scroll bar to move the entire graph, or a portion thereof, to the left or to the right.
- Remove negative measured values, whereby the measured values are excluded at 0 (click on 'Strip neg. values').
- Filter the measured values by clicking on the '*Filter*' button. The sharp peaks are removed during the filtering by averaging over a specific set of peaks. The averaging is performed on the basis of settings that can be adjusted with the '*Filter settings*' button. Be careful when it comes to changing the filter settings; the settings are set to realistic default values. It is recommended that you record the old values before you make any changes to these default values.
- You can calculate an average of the measured values using the 'Average' button. During this process, a moving average of the parameter's measured values is continuously calculated. The result of this process is that the graph will acquire a smoother look.

You can perform these edits for all measured parameters over the entire graph or the selected depth all at once using the '*Filter all*' and '*Average all*' buttons. You can also repeatedly click on a button to perform a repeated edit. Figure 13 on page 13 contains an example of a processed graph.

If you have made changes to a graph, but decide you would prefer to retain the original values, select '*No*' when asked whether you want to save the changes or click on '*Restore*'.

Tip: by double clicking on the graph an area of 20 cm is always averaged. This way a deviating measured value can be filtered.



Figure 12: Graph without any edits



Figure 13: Processed graph

6. Printing a sounding graph

In GEO you can adjust the graph using various settings to suit your preferences. Under the '*General*' tab in the main screen you can select the parameters to be displayed in the graph. You can also add text to your graph here.

Most print settings can be accessed by clicking on 'Setup' and 'Print settings' (Figure 14) on the main screen.

Print Setup	x
Printer dependant shift	^
Horizontal printer shift: 0.25 cm Vertical printer shift 0.25 cm	
Each printer has specific horizontal and vertical zero-shifts. Here one can correct this. The first point top left is positioned to be exactly horizontally 1,6 cm and vertically 1,0 cm.	
Logos and position	
Logo file name: C:\Users\frank\Desktop\download.bmp Search	
Bottom left side 🗹 Bottom right side 🗌 Top right side 🗌 Scale propotionally	
U kunt een logo laten drukken in de rechterbovenhoek, de linker onderhoek of aan de rechteronderhoek. Ook is het mogelijk geen logo af te drukken. Hiervoor dient het veld met de logonaam leeg te zijn. Ook de folder waar het logo zich bevindt wordt bewaard.	
Line styles and line widths Parameter: Cone resistance Style: line Width Dot interval: 0.05 Stripe interval: 0.2	
Huidige kleurenschema: default.clr Read color scheme Save color scheme Graphs black-white	
Print scale per parameter	
Qc: 2 ▼ Fr: 0.05 ▼ Fr_Index: 2 ▼ P: 0.05 ▼ P_Index: 20 ▼ FT ot 10 ▼ Reset	
Other print properties	
Sound.nr. top left 🗹 Reference line 🗌 Cone parameters 🗹 Sub numbers 🗌 Remarks relative to REF 🗌	
Inclination left 🔄 Inclination mid 🗌 Max. inclination 🗌 Hydrostatic line 🗹	
Graph overlap 🗹 Page overlap: 3 🔻 Sounding depth🗸 Heighest surface 🗌 Whole sounding 🗌	
	~
>	

Figure 14: Print Setup

Various settings can be adjusted on the print setup form:

- The horizontal and vertical print shifts (0.65 and 0.25, respectively, by default). Every laser printer has a specific shift in a horizontal and vertical direction as a result of which the (x,y) = (0,0) point does not correspond to the left top corner. These values are set to the correct default values. You can shift the entire graph further to the left, for example, to provide for a binding margin, by entering a larger number for the horizontal value.
- You can print a graphics image (e.g., a logo) (in BMP format) on the graphs, whereby you can select whether you want to print the images as '*Best fit*' or scaled ('*Scale proportionally*'). In case of the '*Best fit*' option the height or the width are adjusted. The image's proportions can therefore change and result in deformation. If the image is scaled, the length and width proportion is kept the same.
- In the 'Line styles and line widths' box you can select the colour, line style, printed line thickness and the size of the spacing between 2 dashes or dots.

In addition, there are a number of checkboxes that you can check or uncheck.

- Whether to print the sounding number at the top left or not. The sounding number is always printed at the bottom of the graph.
- Should the 0 depth line be printed relative to the reference level.
- You can indicate whether the average inclination values per metre should be printed in the left margin, inside the graph or not at all.
- Additional measurement data for this sounding can be printed at the bottom of the graph, if desired.
- You can decide whether or not to have the sounding's sequence numbers used internally by the program printed.
- You can choose a print in which the graphs of the parameters overlap each other or are kept separate.
- The measured values can be displayed as a function of the sounding length or sounding depth. If the graph is printed relative to the sounding depth, the depth at which the measurement is performed is adjusted to the actual value on the basis of the measured inclination.
- The '*Highest surface*' option is used to indicate whether all soundings in a project should be drawn in relation to the highest ground level in that project. Alternatively, the optimal plotting height is calculated for each sounding.

Once you have adjusted all of the settings as desired you can click on '*Print*' in the main screen. Next, you can select the graph's raster size and whether you want to print all of the soundings in the relevant folder. By dragging with the left-hand mouse button in the 'Sounding Files' window, which contains the sounding numbers, you can select multiple soundings at the same time. These soundings can then be printed together.

After this you can select the printer.

7. Other program options

• Files

Under the '*Files > Export*' tab you can export data as a GEF file, Eijkelkamp GeoPoint SoilSolutions file or APB file.

• Commands

Under the 'Commands' tab you can also change the sounding number and the project number.

• Translation

Under the '*Translation*' tab you can enter 3 translation options in the yellow columns. You can select these above the column. If you select the translation, then only the translation is displayed on the printed graph.

• Setup

By clicking on 'Setup' in the menu, you can adjust GEO's properties as desired.

> 'Archive locations'

When this option is selected, the archive form opens. You can create new archives here and delete other archives, provided they are not designated as working archives.

> 'Cone definitions'

In GEO you can maintain a record for each sounding indicating which cone was used and what its calibration values are. In the '*Cone definitions*' field you can set the parameters for every cone that is in use. You can subsequently select the cones you have defined from the '*Cone*' tab in the main form. When a cone is selected all of the predefined values are automatically populated. If you specify that a cone is a 15 tonne subtraction cone and that its friction mantle is 22,500 mm2, then when an Eijkelkamp GeoPoint SoilSolutions sounding is imported that uses this cone, the local friction is calculated on the basis of the cone's mantle surface area.

> 'Print settings'

Section 6 includes an elaborate description of the print settings.

> 'Standard values'

In GEO's main form you can specify details for a sounding using pull-down tabs with predefined values. In this function, a form is opened that you can use to specify the predefined values for each pull-down tab.

> 'Other settings'

You can enter various administrative details for the GEF import/export here. You can also change the default positions of the text boxes here (which you can fill in under the '*General*' tab). The same applies to the default sounding class and export/print parameters. In addition, you can specify the use of a decimal point or comma here.

'Statistics'

Provides an overview of the data in the archive and folder used.

'About'

Provides the program's version number and the Eijkelkamp GeoPoint SoilSolutions contact details.

9. Interrupted sounding data (while drilling)

It is possible for a situation to occur that forces you to halt the sounding prematurely, for example when a hard layer is encountered. When this hard layer is drilled through and you then continue the sounding, a piece of data will be missing in the sounding after which a 'new' sounding is started. This means that you end up with multiple sounding files for a sounding. It would be nice to be able to merge these files to create a single continuous graph.

First, it would be useful to create a new folder; e.g. 'merged sounding'.

You can copy the '1-file' and the '0-file' of the first sounding in the series to this new folder. Next, the 1-file must be edited by opening it in the Notepad program. You will the see the following:

/ FR-17064 - Kladblok			×
Bestand Bewerken Opmaak Beeld Help			
789 906 381 1336 0 0 0 8870 887 101	17 26	3	~
945 1096 386 1359 0 0 0 8880 888 10	017 6	50	
1336 1520 393 1351 0 0 0 8890 889 1	1018	0	
2072 2285 401 1356 0 0 0 8900 890 1			
3051 3242 411 1369 0 0 0 0 8910 891 1			
4035 4209 423 1370 0 0 0 8920 892 1			
4932 5119 432 1362 0 0 0 8930 893 1			
5677 5833 436 1362 0 0 0 8940 894 1			
6196 6327 439 1356 0 0 0 8950 895 1			
6529 6670 442 1362 0 0 0 8960 896 1			
6582 6717 442 1362 0 0 0 8970 8971			
6572 6719 441 1362 0 0 0 0 8980 898 1			
6576 6721 441 1360 0 0 0 0 899(899)	022	60	
<			>

	FR-	17064	- Kla	db	lok					C]	×	
Best	tand	Bev	verk	en	0	pm	naa	k Bee	ld H	elp			
12	21	665	48	0	0	0	0	8940	894	612	20		~
12	21	665	48	0	0	0	0	8950	895	612	40		
12	21	665	48	0	0	0	0	8960	896	612	40		
								8970					
13	21	668	48	0	0	0	0	8980	898	612	80		
								8990					
								9000					
								9010					
13	22	672	48	0	0	0	0	9020	902	613	40		
								9030					
13	22	676	46	0	0	0	0	9040	904	613	60		
								9050					
								9060					
12	21	670	39	0	0	0	0	9070	907	641	80		
													٧
<												>	

Figure 16: Data selection

Figure 15: 1-file in Notepad

You will see various measured parameters here, separated by a vertical line. To 'paste' the data from the other sounding correctly below one another, you must first locate the column that specifies the depth. This column contains the series that increases per centimetre (0-1-2-3, etc).

If you then scroll all the way down, you will find the final depth of the sounding (circled in red in Figure 15). The intent is to paste the data from the other soundings in the 1-file of the first sounding, which is located in the folder you created.

Next open the '1-file' of the second sounding in Notepad and scroll down to the previous final depth. Select the data following the previous depth entirely to the bottom and copy it (Figure 16). Now paste this copied data into the 1-file of the first sounding. Ensure that there is no blank line between and at the end of the data series.

You can repeat these steps until the sounding is completely merged, depending on the number of interruptions. Save this file, which can now be imported into GEO as an ordinary sounding.

Sample end-product



Nothing from this document may be copied and/or made public by means of printing, photocopy, microfilm or in any other way whatsoever without the prior written permission of the publisher. Technical data can change without prior notification. Eijkelkamp GeoPoint SoilSolutions is not responsible/liable for damage/personal injury due to the use or misuse of this product. Eijkelkamp GeoPoint SoilSolutions is pleased to receive your feedback and comments about its products and this user manual.